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1938

The State chartered Richland

forerunner of First National

Pulaski opened for business

side of the public square in

January 12 1958 The new

bank was capitalized

at $60000
By the end of

the year the

assets of the

bank stood at

approximately

$410000

1948
In 1948 the Board of Directors made the

decision to convert Richland Bank into

national banking association On January

1949 the bank began operation under

its new national banking charter as

First National Bank of Pulaski Assets

at the time of the conversion

to the national charter were

approximately $5500000

1950
Under the combined leadership of

Parmenas Cox and Robert Curry First

National Bank continued to grow through
the 1950s reaching the $6000000
goal it had set for itself by the end of

that decade

1961

During this year the bank opened the

ærst full service drivein branch

located on West College Street

1963

The Ardmore Branch was opened for

business in September

1966

The bank moved couple of blocks

south of Pulaskis Square to new

facility ending the year with just over

$15500000 in assets

1973

Minor Hill branch opened and as result

of overall bank growth assets surpassed

$71700000 by the end of the 70s

1981

In November the bank uinalized the

formation of one bank holding company
First Pulaski National Corporation The

assets of the bank at the time of the

formation of the holding company were

approximately $85000000

1982

The West College Street Branch was

closed while simultaneously opening

new branch on Bennett Drive known

as the Industrial Park Branch Also
the Ardmore Branch was expanded and

completely remodeled

1985

The Minor Hill Branch closed and new

branch was opened on the Minor Hill Road

in Pulaski

1986

The main ofce underwent total

renovation and expansion including the

construction of the Cox and Curry Center

housing the Giles Heritage Theatre and

multipurpose community room known

as the First National Bank Room This

center symbolized the banks commitment

to the community

1988

The 50th anniversary of the bank was

marked by surpassing $141500000 in

total assets

Also new community room was

constructed in Ardmore adjacent to the

banking facility

1991

First branch located outside of Giles

County was opened on West College Street

in Fayetteville in temporary building
Assets stood at $169000000

1993

First National Bank moved into the Park

City area of Lincoln County In this

year extensive renovation was done at

the Ardmore branch as well as expansion

and renovation of the main offtce in

Pulaski was completed

Bank the

Bank of

on the east

Pulaski on



The ne Pair Cit permanent iaciit

comp1etea

Construction began on the ne bank

building ior the donton Fayetteville

olice itb operations beginning in thesc

new oices December 200L

The most sibniflcant event 2001 as
Fiit 1uai Nationa Corporatons

acquisition Banx Beliast This

acquisition represented siigbtl5 better

than hve percent the market bare in

karshall County

First Nationals merger ith the Banu ci

Beliast as nalized ending the year ith

combined assets oi $381669730

Duxing this ear tue banx continued it
eiorts to gror and expand in the market

area erve and as result the 9th

oce First National Bank was opened

in Lynnville Tsnnessee

Construction icr ne lull service

aclt5 or our kar.ha Coun
ollice began

The Leisburg onme as compted
allo mg us to bettor srve and grc the

aiarshall courty marx et During 2007

sa the ban exceed $500000000 in

tota asets and began the pxocess ci

establishing pnsical pre nce in

North Aloama

During th pivotal year thc Ban

cxpanded opexation into Noxth Ajabaija

ith the opening ci re oiccs
First as the Hurtvill branch locat

in the Commerce Certex cii Clinton

Avenue hich cpned in eanly Januarj

and xpenienced soi gic th ro gicut

the sear becond as tue opning ci

/1e4
ne oice in Athens Alabama at the

intersection Higbra 73 and Lindsay

Lane his okhce serves as temporary

location until completed construction on

the ne building shich is scheduled to

begin in 2009 The 5ear 2008 ended with

assets at $592303208
At the April 24th crganizationai meeting

ci the Board Directors br First

Pulasui National Corporation and First

National Bank the board named Llarr

Haes as Chairuan and CEO and Don Haney

as President and COO Jimmy Ccx rho

served as Chairman ci the Board ince

1999 stepped dosn irom the Board due to

reaching the Boards mandatory retirement

age ci 70 Jimmy continues to serve

the companj as senior Executive 0flcer

and is member Oi the senior executive

management team
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Report of Management on the Companys
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

March 10 2009

Management of First Pulaski National Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of assets provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures are made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements control

system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the objectives of

the control system are met Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide

absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any have been detected Also projections of any
evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of change in conditions or that

the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate

Management of First Pulaski National Corporation including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer has

assessed the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria for effective internal

control over financial reporting described in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this assessment management has concluded that the Companys internal

control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2008 based on the specified criteria

Crowe Horwath LLP an independent registered public accounting finn has audited the effectiveness of the Companys internal

controls over financial reporting as stated in their report which is included herein

/7
Mark Hayes Tracy

orterL

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Ho-.th LLP

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Audit Committee

First Pulaski National Corporation

Pulaski Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiary

Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in

shareholders equity and cash flows for the
years

then ended We also have audited the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The

Companys management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements for maintaining effective internal

control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on the Companys Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on

the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit of the consolidated financial

statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable

detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

14



In our opinion the 2008 and 2007 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiary as of December 31 2008 and

2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all

material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 2008 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO

Crowe Horwath LLP

Brentwood Tennessee

March 10 2009
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PUTMAN HANCOCK
Certified Public Accountants

219 East College Street

P.O Box 722 Phone 931 433-1040

Fayetteville Tennessee 37334 Fax 931433-9290

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Stockholders and Board of Directors

First Pulaski National Corporation

Pulaski Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of income changes in shareholders

equity and cash flows of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiaries for the year ended

December 31 2006 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporations

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated results of First Pulaski National Corporation and subsidiaries operations and

their cash flows for the year ended December 31 2006 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America

Fayetteville

February 22 2007
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2008 and 2007

ASSETS

2008 2007

Cash and due from banks 12490928 11297523

Federal funds sold 11686000 16069000

Total cash and cash equivalents 24176928 27366523

Interest bearing balances with banks 535508 529567

Securities available for sale 136651867 153900040

Loans

Loans held for sale 1638320 559100

Loans net of unearned income 396926068 321070794

Allowance for loan losses 5219956 3467019

Total net loans 393344432 318162875

Bank premises and equipment 17660834 11948764

Accrued interest receivable 4598027 4862241

Other real estate owned 247183 671911

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 1526500 1467100

Company-owned life insurance 9274734 8268688

Prepayments and other assets 4287195 2762886

TOTAL ASSETS 592303208 529940595

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Noninterest bearing 69672714 59298488

Interest bearing 460824543 409709711

Total deposits 530497257 469008199

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1724058 1726486

Other borrowed funds 3391522 3639592

Accrued interest on deposits 2300461 3030415

Other liabilities 3357042 2902878

TOTAL LIABILITIES 541270340 480307570

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock $1 par value authorized 10000000 shares

1551407 and 1546551 shares issued and outstanding respectively 1551407 1546551

Capital surplus 649985 162553

Retained earnings 47865678 47530792

Accumulated other comprehensive income net 965798 393129

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 51032868 49633025

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 592303208 529940595

The accoinpan ring notes are an integral part 0/
these financial statements
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

INTEREST INCOME

Loans including fees 27164206 26453314 23268902

Securities

Taxable 3584118 3936960 2878898

Non-taxable 2588075 2645895 2325123

Federal funds sold 245403 445785 443983

Interest on deposits in otherbanks 17180 17375 19.982

Dividends 88013 106062 91362

Total Interest Income 33686995 33605391 29028250

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on deposits

Transaction accounts 697797 512002 370046

Money market deposit accounts 837324 1145429 1137489

Other savings deposits 265190 253830 280026

Time certificates of deposit of $100000 or more 7344362 8187657 6215412

All other time deposits 5484728 6408043 4.839090

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 39686 65362 29806

Other borrowed funds 187411 205008 208899

Total Interest Expense 14856498 16777331 13080768

NET INTEREST INCOME 18830497 16828060 15947482

Provision for loan losses 2032719 261391 175468

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION

FOR LOAN LOSSES 16797778 16566669 15772014

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Service charges on deposit accounts 2518623 2397211 2332817

Commissions and fees 403358 428972 457119

Other service charges and fees 456996 401310 345.916

Income on company-owned life insurance 295046 259237 220143

Security gains net 24090

Gains on sale or write-downs of other assets net 601 26529 112788

Other income 204499 178125 61762

Mortgage banking income 496618 447803 490397

Total Non-interest Income 4399831 4139187 4020942

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benefits 8932892 7812091 7420905

Occupancycxpcnsc net 1536541 1321113 1273088

Furniture and equipment expense 807668 757050 765765

Advertising and public relations 722545 634833 645301

Impairment on available for sale securities 1952721

Other operating expenses 3299334 2866940 2543836

Total Non-inlerest Expenses 17251701 13392027 12648895

Income before income taxes 3945908 7313829 7144.061

Applicable income tax expense 474754 l86l139 1865324

NET INCOME 3471154 5452690 5278737

Earnings per common share

Basic 2.24 3.51 3.36

Diluted 2.24 3.50 3.35

The accornJuning notes are an integral part ottlese financial statements
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 3471154 5452690 5278737

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities-

Provision for loan losses 2032719 261391 175468

Depreciation 834485 792005 793823

Amortization and accretion of investment securities net 277801 305421 400464

Deferred income tax benefit 1514798 234632 70875
Gain on sale or write-downs of other assets 601 26529 112788

Security gains net 24090

Stock-based compensation expense 125813 28760

Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividend 59400 82100

Loans originated for sale 22756309 16389236 18998828

Proceeds from sale of loans 22173707 16248396 19112848

Gain on the sale of loans 496618 447803 490397

Impairment of available for sale securities 1952721

Increase in cash surrender value of company-owned life insurance 295046 259238 220143

Increase decrease in interest receivable 264214 688081 654668

Increase decrease in prepayrnents and other assets 364087 201053 416491

Decrease increase in accrued interest on deposits 729954 169816 704682

Increase in accrued taxes 414359 221111 128889

Increase in other liabilities 39805 273991 306059

Cash Provided by Operating Activities net 5345875 5909115 5854680

CASH FLOWS FROM ACTIVITIES

Purchases ofsecurities available for sale 77181235 73636885 41286553

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 9862297

Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale 83287923 68277908 28957830

Increase decrease in interest bearing balances with banks 5941 1027804 1227553

Purchase of company-owned life insurance 711000 235100 754100

Net increase in loans 76394825 40990073 8101121

Capital expenditures 6545396 1159705 2127131

Proceeds from sale of other assets 683940 516124 703360

Cash Used by Investing Activities net 67004237 46199927 23835268

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings repaid 248070 234625 221935

Net decrease increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements 2428 317379 1409107

Net increase in deposits 61489058 42533620 29062800

Cash dividends paid 2790128 2.796233 2637790

Proceeds from exercise of stock options including tax benefit 122415 165978 102579

Payments to repurchase common stock 250470 125070

Common stock repurchased 352550 1428735 1270250

Cash Provided by Financing Activities net 58468767 38682454 264445

INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH net 3189595 1608358 8463923

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS beginning of year 27366523 28974881 20510958

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS end of year 24176928 27366523 28974881

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid $15586452 $16607515 $12376834

Income taxes paid 1618005 1.642392 2072431

Supplemental noncash disclosures

Transfers from loans to real estate owned 259770 497768 210436

Common stock exchanged in connection with exercise of stock options 135575

f/ic
atcoinpaniitg

Holes 010 ml integrol pm-I 0/ these /inonc-ict/ sIttIenenls
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANCES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Years Ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2016

Balance at Beeember 2005

Comprehensive income

Net income

Change in unrealized

gains losses on AFS

securities net of tax

Comprehensive income

Cash dividends paid $1.6

per share

Exercise of stock options

Common stock repurehased
____________ _________

Balance at Becember 31 2006

Comprehensive income

Net income

Change in unrealized

gains losses on AFS

securities net of tax

Coniprehensixe income

Net nicome

Change in unrealized

gains losses on AES

securities net of tax

Comprehensixe income

Cash dividends paid $1.80

per
share

Compensation expense for

restricted stock

Tax benefit arising from exercise

of director stock options

Exercise of stock
options 7527 7527

Issuance of new stock 6204 6204

Common stock repnrehascd 8875 8575

Balance at Becember 31 2008 1551407 1551407

Thcacsumpuisngnssareaninieçru/ ario/ihce /sszric jut iuicrnenis

3471154 3471154

572.669 572669

41143823

2791128 2790128

125813 125813

Accumulated

Other

Common Stock
Capital Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount $gpgs Eamings Income Loss net Tool

1.587464 1587.464 1634087 43004099 1469319 44756331

5278737 5278737

838995 838995

6117732

2637790 2637790

960193383

25.405

1565442

4812

2274

25977

1546551

3383

25405

1565442

4812

2274

25977

1546551

92636

1244845

481878

28 .76

9358

151808

122796

63 2147

162553

Contprehensive income

Cash dividends paid $1.80

per
sltare

Compensation expense for

restricted stock

Tax benefit arising from exercise

of director stock options

Exercise of stock options

Issuance of new stock

Conimoit stock repurchased

Balance at Becember 2007

270250

45645046 630324 47062042

5452690 5452690

1023453 1023453

6476143

2796233 2796233

28760

9358

156620

125170

77071t
_______ 1428735

47530792 393129 49633025

12.159

23 .314

244.266

133110

649985

12159

245831

250.470

346140 488125

47865678 965798 032868
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FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include First Pulaski National

Corporation the Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary First National Bank of Pulaski the Bank as well as the

Banks wholly owned subsidiary First Pulaski Reinsurance Company FPRC together referred to as the Company
Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation

The Company provides financial services through its offices in Giles Lincoln and Marshall Counties in Tennessee and Limestone

and Madison Counties in Alabama Its primary deposit products are checking savings and term certificate accounts and its

primary lending products are residential mortgage commercial and installment loans Substantially all loans are secured by

specific items of collateral including business assets consumer assets and commercial and residential real estate Commercial

loans are expected to be repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses There are no significant concentrations of loans to

any one industry or customer However the customers ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real estate and general

economic conditions in the area

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information These estimates and

assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided and actual results could differ

The allowance for loan losses and fair values of financial instruments are particularly subject to change

Cash Flows Cash and cash equivalents includes cash deposits with other financial institutions with maturities under 90 days

and federal funds sold Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions interest bearing deposits in other

financial institutions and federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mature within

one year and are carried at cost

Securities Debt securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the positive

intent and ability to hold them to maturity Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before

maturity Equity securities with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale Securities available for sale

are carried at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income net of tax

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount Premiums and discounts on securities are amortized on

the level-yield method with premiums amortized to the call date if applicable and discounts amortized to maturity date

Prepayments are anticipated in the amortization of premiums and discounts for mortgage backed securities Gains and losses on

sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method

Declines in the fair value of securities below their cost that are other than temporary are reflected as realized losses In estimating

other-than-temporary losses management considers the length of time and extent that fair value has been less than cost the

financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer and the Companys ability and intent to hold the security for period

sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value

Loans Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported

at the principal balance outstanding net of deferred loan fees and costs and an allowance for loan losses Interest income is

accrued on the unpaid principal balance Loan origination fees net of certain direct origination costs are deferred and recognized

in interest income using method to approximate the level-yield method

Interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in process

of collection Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan In all cases loans are placed on nonaccrual or

charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income Interest received on such

loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual Loans are returned to

accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are

reasonably assured

Concentration of Credit Risk Most of the Companys business activity is with customers located within Giles Lincoln and

Marshall Counties in Tennessee and Limestone and Madison Counties in Alabama Therefore the Companys exposure to credit

risk is significantly affected by changes in the economy in these areas
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
Mortgage Banking The Corporation originates first-lien mortgage loans for the purpose of selling them in the secondary market

Mortgage loans held for sale are recorded at cost which approximates market value Gains and losses realized from the sale of

these assets are included in noninterest income Servicing rights related to the mortgages sold are not retained Loans include

loans held for sale at December 31 2008 and 2007 totaling $1638320 and $559100 respectively

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses Loan

losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed

Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance Management estimates the allowance balance required using past

loan loss experience the nature and volume of the portfolio information about specific borrower situations and estimated

collateral values economic conditions and other factors Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans but the

entire allowance is available for any loan that in managements judgment should be charged off

The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are individually

classified as impaired or loans otherwise classified as substandard or doubtful The general component covers non-classified

loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors

loan is impaired when full payment under the loan terms is not expected Commercial and commercial real estate loans over

$250000 are individually evaluated for impairment If loan is impaired portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan

is reported net at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loans existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if

repayment is expected solely from the collateral Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans such as consumer and

residential real estate loans are collectively evaluated for impairment and accordingly they are not separately identified for

impairment disclosures

Transfers of Financial Assets Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been

relinquished Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Company
the transferee obtains the right free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the

transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to

repurchase them before their maturity

Foreclosed Assets Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell

when acquired establishing new cost basis If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is recorded

through expense Operating costs after acquisition are expensed

Premises and Equipment Land is carried at cost Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and related components are depreciated using the straight-line and accelerated methods with useful lives ranging from

to 39 years Furniture fixtures and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line and accelerated method with useful lives

ranging from to years

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB Stock The Bank is member of the FHLB system Members are required to own certain

amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors and may invest in additional amounts FHLB stock is carried

at cost classified as restricted security and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate
recovery of par value Both

cash and stock dividends are reported as income

Company Owned Life Insurance The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain directors and key executives In

accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue No 06-5 Accounting Jbr Purchases of LfŁ Insurance-Determing

the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No 85-4 Company owned life insurance is

recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date which is the cash surrender

value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their

carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows If impaired the assets are recorded at fair value

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments such

as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit issued to meet customer financing needs The face amount for

these items represents the exposure to loss before considering customer collateral or ability to repay Such financial instruments

are recorded when they are funded
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Stock-Based Compensation Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to employees

based on the fair value of these awards at the date of grant Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of stock

options while the market price of the Corporations common stock at the date of grant is used for restricted stock awards

Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period generally defined as the vesting period For awards with graded

vesting compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award

Income Taxes Income tax expense is the total of the current year
income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred tax

assets and liabilities Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between

carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities computed using enacted tax rates valuation allowance if needed

reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Interpretation 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income

Taxes FIN 48 as of January 2007 tax position is recognized as benefit only if it is more likely than not that the tax

position would be sustained in tax examination with tax examination being presumed to occur The amount recognized is the

largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination For tax positions not meeting the

more likely than not test no tax benefit is recorded The adoption had no affect on the Companys financial statements

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense

Retirement Plans Employee profit sharing plan expense is the amount contributed by the Company Deferred compensation and

supplemental retirement plan expense
allocates the benefits over years of service The present value of future benefits to be paid

is being accrued over the period from the effective date of the agreements until the full eligibility date

Earnings Per Common Share Basic earnings per common share is net income divided by the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per common share includes the dilutive effect of additional

potential common shares issuable under stock options as well as restricted common stock

Comprehensive Income Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income Other comprehensive

income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale which are also recognized as separate components of

equity

Loss Contingencies Loss contingencies including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business are

recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range
of loss can be reasonably estimated

Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have material effect on the financial statements

Restrictions on Cash Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank was required to meet regulatory reserve and

clearing requirements These balances do not earn interest

Dividend Restriction Banking regulations require maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends paid by the bank

to the holding company or by the holding company to shareholders

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and

other assumptions as more fully disclosed in separate note Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant

judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad markets for

particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates

Operating Segments While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services

operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on Company-wide basis Operating segments are aggregated

into one as operating results for all segments are similar Accordingly all of the financial service operations are considered by

management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment

Reclassifications Some items in the prior year
financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation
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Adoption of New Accounting Standards In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 This Statement defines fair value establishes framework for

measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements This Statement establishes fair value hierarchy

about the assumptions used to measure fair value and clarifies assumptions about risk and the effect of restriction on the sale or

use of an asset The standard was effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB

issued Staff Position FSP 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 This FSP delays the effective date of SFAS 157

for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on recurring

basis at least annually to fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years The

impact of adoption was not material In October 2008 the FASB issued FSP 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial

Asset when the Market for That Asset Is Not Active This FSP clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in market that is not active

The impact of adoption was not material

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities The

standard provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and establishes

presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different

measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities The new standard was effective for the Company on January
2008 The Company did not elect the fair value option for any financial assets or financial liabilities as of January 2008

In September 2006 the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensation and

Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements This issue requires that liability be

recorded during the service period when split-dollar life insurance agreement continues after participants employment or

retirement The required accrued liability will be based on either the post-employment benefit cost for the continuing life

insurance or based on the future death benefit depending on the contractual terms of the underlying agreement This issue was
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2007 The impact of adoption was not material

On November 2007 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 109 Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair

Value through Earnings SAB 109 Previously SAB 105 Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments stated

that in measuring the fair value of derivative loan commitment company should not incorporate the expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of the loan SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and indicates that the expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in measuring fair value for all written loan commitments

that are accounted for at fair value through earnings SAB 105 also indicated that internally-developed intangible assets should

not be recorded as part of the fair value of derivative loan commitment and SAB 109 retains that view SAB 109 was effective

for derivative loan commitments issued or modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15 2007 The impact of

adoption was not material

In December 2007 the SEC issued SAB No 110 which expresses the views of the SEC regarding the use of simplified
method as discussed in SAB No 107 in developing an estimate of expected term of plain vanilla share options in accordance

with SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment The SEC concluded that company could under certain circumstances continue

to use the simplified method for share option grants after December 31 2007 The Company does not use the simplified method

for share options and therefore SAB No 110 has no impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

Effect of Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141

revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 141R which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer

recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling
interest in an acquiree including the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in business combination SFAS No
141R is effective for fiscal

years beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is prohibited The adoption of this

standard is not expected to have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements an
amendment ofARB No 51 SFAS 160 which will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be

recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as component of equity within the consolidated balance sheets SFAS
160 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is prohibited
and the Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have significant impact on its results of operations or financial

position
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In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an

amendment of SEAS No 133 SFAS 161 SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS No 133 for

derivative instruments and hedging activities SFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosure about objectives and strategies for using

derivative and hedging instruments quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of the instruments and gains and losses on

such instruments as well as disclosures about credit-risk features in derivative agreements SFAS 161 is effective for financial

statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged The

adoption of this standard is not expected to have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position

NOTE 2- SECURITIES

The fair value of available for sale securities and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income loss were as follows

Gross Gross

Fair Unrealized Unrealized

2008 Value Gains Losses

U.S Treasury securities 108125 4201

U.S Government sponsored agencies 58510833 863130 27

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 64971229 852128 246552

Mortgage-backed securities 12608658 211701 8753

Corporate debt securities 386622 113378

Total debt securities 136585467 1931160 368710

Equity Securities 66400

Total $136651867 1931160 368710

2007

U.S Government sponsored agencies 62690424 552254 37522

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 81779053 416775 212706

Mortgage-backed securities 3938928 14397 4583

Corporate debt securities 3468690 1206 94614

Total debt securities 151877095 984632 349425

Equity Securities 2022945

Total $153900040 984632 349425

Sales of available for sale securities were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Proceeds 9862297

Gross gains 35165

Gross losses 11075

The tax benefit provision related to these net realized gains and losses was $9224 $0 and $0 respectively
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The fair value of debt securities and carrying amount if different at year end 2008 by contractual maturity were as follows

Securities not due at single maturity date primarily mortgage-backed securities are shown separately

Available

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five
years

Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years

Mortgage-backed

TOTAL

for Sale

Fair Value

11690456

70405335

40148669

1732349

12608658

136585467

Description of Securities

Obligations of U.S Government

Sponsored Agencies

Obligations of States and

Political Subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Corporate Bonds

Total Temporarily Impaired

Securities

Less Than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

Value Loss

24973 27

12 Months or Longer

Fair Unrealized

Value Loss

668570 54141

386622 113378

1055192 167519

Total

Fair Unrealized

Value Loss

24973 27

Description of Securities

Obligations of U.S Government

Sponsored Agencies

Obligations of States and

Political Subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Corporate Bonds

Total Temporarily Impaired

Securities

Less Than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized

Value Loss

12 Months or Longer

Fair Unrealized

Value Loss

Total

Fair Unrealized

Value Loss

37522

42489171 349425

Securities pledged at year-end 2008 and 2007 had carrying amount of $107855242 and $77196555 and were pledged to

secure public deposits and repurchase agreements

At year-end 2008 and 2007 there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer other than U.S government agencies and U.S

government-sponsored agencies in an amount greater than 10% of shareholders equity

Securities with unrealized losses at year-end 2008 and 2007 aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual

securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position are as follows

2008

10567596

999041

192411

8753

2007

$11591610 201191

11236166

999041

386622

246552

8753

113378

12646802 368710

3827384

2334300 700 8547705 36822 10882005

23460 24399266 189246 28226650 212706

413926 4583 413926 4583

2966590 94614 2966590 94614

6161684 24160 $36327487 325265
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The Companys equity securities consist of floating rate preferred stock issued by Federal National Mortgage Association

FNMA For the year ended December 31 2008 the Company recognized $1952721 pre-tax charge for the other-than-

temporary decline in fair value As required by SFAS 115 when decline in fair value below cost is deemed to be other-than-

temporary the unrealized loss must be recognized as charge to earnings On September 2008 the United States Department

of the Treasury the Federal Reserve and the Federal Housing Finance Agency FHFA announced that the FHFA was placing

Fannie Mae and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Freddie Mac under conservatorship eliminating dividend

payments on Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac common and preferred stock and giving management control over Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac to FHFA Subsequent to the announcement of the actions described above the market value of the perpetual

preferred securities of Fannie Mae owned by the Company declined significantly leading to the charge to earnings for other-than-

temporary impairment

The Company evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment-at least on quarterly basis and more frequently when

economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the

fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent and ability of the

Company to retain its investment in the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value In

analyzing an issuers financial condition the Company may consider whether the securities are issued by the federal government

or its agencies whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred and the results of reviews of the issuers financial

condition Since the Company has the ability and intent to hold the securities in the table above until market price recovery or

maturity the impairment of these securities other than the equity securities of FNMA is not deemed to be other-than-temporary

and it is felt that the full principal will be collected as anticipated

The Company had 1.9% limited partnership interest in the Morgan Keegan Mezzanine Fund LLP This investment is

accounted for under the equity method of accounting since it is partnership

NOTE 3- LOANS
Loans at year end were as follows

2008 2007

Construction and land development 55484202 21827519

Commercial and industrial 34120024 30711886

Agricultural 7641762 8259742

Real estate loans secured by

Farmland 35923454 33551011

Residential property 91757578 77961341

Nonresidential nonfarm 137748507 115478482

Consumer 26668337 24606752

Other loans 9671625 9603861

Subtotal 399015489 322000594

Less Net deferred loan fees 451101 370700

Allowance for loan losses 5219956 3467019

Loans net 393344432 318162875

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows

2008 2007 2006

Beginning balance 3467019 3473143 3735255

Provision for loan losses 2032719 261391 175468

Loans charged-off 475001 517418 739654
Recoveries 195219 249903 379220

Adjustment for off-balance

sheet credit exposures ____________ 77146
Ending balance 5219956 3467019 3473143
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Individually impaired loans were as follows

2008 2007

Year-end loans with no allocated allowance

for loan losses 1996964 427548

Year-end loans with allocated allowance

for loan losses 1031918

Total 3028882 427548

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated 253718

2008 2007 2006

Average of individually impaired loans during the
year 546887 542390 $1616197

Interest income recognized during impairment 35296 18217 60157

Cash-basis interest income recognized 25776 18217 60157

Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual were as follows

2008 2007

Loans past due over 90 days still on accrual 2001

Nonaccrual loans 3028882 427548

Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively

evaluated for impairment and individually classified impaired loans

NOTE 4- FAIR VALUE
SFAS 157 establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the

use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair value

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to

access as of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys own assumptions about the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability

The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities

exchanges Level inputs or matrix pricing which is mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt

securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities

relationship to other benchmark quoted securities Level inputs

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses is generally based on recent real estate

appraisals These appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or combination of approaches including comparable sales

and the income approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the appraisers to adjust for differences

between the comparable sales and income data available Such adjustments are typically significant and result in Level

classification of the inputs for determining fair value
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Assets and Liabilities Measured on Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2008 Using

Significant

Quoted Prices in Other

Active Markets for Observable

Identical Assets Inputs

Level Level

Assets

Available for sale securities 66400 136585467

Assets and Liabilities Measured on Non-Recurring Basis

Fair Value Measurements at December 2008 Using

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level

Assets

Impaired loans 2775164

Impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans had

carrying amount of $3028882 with valuation allowance of $253718 resulting in an additional provision-for loan losses of

$253718 for the period

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments at year
end were as follows

2008 2007

In thousands In thousands

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial assets

Cash and short-term investments 24712 24712 27896 27896

Securities 136652 136652 153900 153900

Loans net 393344 388686 318163 318682

Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1527 N/A 1467 N/A

Accrued interest receivable 4598 4598 4862 4862

Financial liabilities

Deposits 530497 532836 469008 470797

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 1724 1724 1726 1726

Other borrowed funds 3392 3659 3640 3760

Accrued interest payable 2300 2300 3030 3030

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows

Carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash short term investments accrued interest receivable and payable demand

deposits and variable rate loans or deposits that reprice frequently and fully The fair values of securities arc determined by

obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges or matrix pricing which is mathematical technique

widely used in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but

rather by relying on the securities relationship to other benchmark quoted securities For fixed rate loans or deposits and for

variable rate loans or deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits fair value is based on discounted cash flows using

current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk Fair values of impaired loans are generally based on recent real

estate appraisals These appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or combination of approaches including comparable
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sales and the income approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the appraisers to adjust for differences

between the comparable sales and income data available Fair values of debt are based on current rates for similar financing It

was not practicable to determine the fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank stock due to restrictions placed on its transferability

The fair value of off-balance-sheet items and loans held for sale are not considered material

NOTE 5- PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Year-end premises and equipment were as follows

2008 2007

Land 6186529 2706574

Buildings 14590998 14208095

Furniture and equipment 7284452 6854165

Leasehold improvements 152603

Construction in progress 2210626 127631

30425207 23896465

Less Accumulated depreciation $12764373 $l 1947701

$17660834 $11948764

The following table outlines the estimated cost for the building and furniture and equipment and expected completion date

Estimated

Estimated Furniture and Expected

Building Equipment Completion

Cost Cost Date

Pulaski Main Office renovation 2850000 30000 May 2009

Athens Office 2700000 250000 April 2010

Operating Leases The Company leases certain branch properties and equipment under operating leases Rent
expense was

$124578 $8600 and $27600 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Rent commitments before considering renewal options

that generally are present were as follows

2009 99243

2010 101724

2011 104267

2012 106873

Total $412107

NOTE 6- DEPOSITS
Time deposits of $100000 or more were $184338474 and $178039509 at year-end 2008 and 2007

Scheduled maturities of time deposits for the next five years were as follows

2009 282340953

2010 27288100
2011 7172847

2012 3598450

2013 2036232

Overdrafts in the amounts of $2041583 and $3130721 were reclassified as loans as of December 31 2008 and 2007
respectively
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NOTE 7- SECURITIES SOLD UNDER ACREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by U.S government agency securities with carrying amount of

$2529450 and $2364752 at year-end 2008 and 2007 respectively

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are financing arrangements that mature daily At maturity the securities

underlying the agreements are returned to the Company Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase

is summarized as follows

2008 2007 2006

Average daily balance during the year 1566862 1657896 738491

Average interest rate during the year
2.53% 3.94% 4.04%

Maximum month-end balance during the year 1824772 1809996 1590757

Weighted average interest rate at year-end 1.59% 3.55% 4.04%

NOTE 8-OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

At year end advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank were as follows

Principal

Amounts Outstanding

December 31 Interest Maturity

2008 2007 Rates Dates

19552 5.95% 2008

391701 411577 4.46% 2009

77559 108688 6.25% 2011

1514329 1644581 4.09%-7.40% 2012

1147413 1169739 5.09% 2013

154843 171043 6.50% 2016

105677 114412 4.87% 2018

3391522 3639592

Each advance is payable at its maturity date with prepayment penalty for fixed rate advances The advances were collateralized

by $64248424 and $59695394 of first mortgage loans under blanket lien arrangement at year-end 2008 and 2007 Based on

this collateral and the Companys holdings of FHLB stock the Company is eligible to borrow up to $33192000 at year-end

2008

Payment Information

Required payments over the next five years are

2009 631463

2010 234787

2011 216927

2012 1122944

2013 1077213

Thereafter 108188

NOTE 9-INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense benefit was as follows

2008 2007 2006

Current expense

Federal 1489020 1599596 1534235

State 500532 486817 395404

Deferred expense

Federal 1257650 187032 52807

State 257148 38242 11508

Total 474754 1861139 1865324
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NOTE 9-INCOME TAXES CONTINUED
Effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of 34% applied to income before taxes due to the following

2008 2007 2006

Federal taxes at statutory rate 1341609 2486702 2428981

Increase decrease resulting from

tax effect of

Tax exempt interest on obligations

of states and political subdivisions 863062 821302 726372
State income taxes net of federal

income tax benefit 160633 296060 260967

Dividend received deduction 32264 574
Increase in cash surrender value 100316 88140 74849
Benefit of lower tax rates of First

Pulaski Reinsurance Company 16605 20250 21944

Others net 15241 8643 1459
Provision for Income Taxes 474754 1861139 1865324

Year-end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 1744295 1029942

Director benefit plans 575508 495901

Impirment of available for sale securities 749259

Deferred loan fees 172727 141941

Other 107928 179815

Gross Deferred Tax Assets 3349717 1847599

Deferred tax liabilities

SFAS 115 equity adjustment 596653 242077

Other securities 322749 300005

Other 18390 53814

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 937792 595896

Net Deferred Tax Asset 2411925 1251703

The Company has sufficient refundable taxes paid in available carryback years to fully realize its recorded deferred tax assets

Accordingly no valuation has been recorded

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $3 1041 and $29284 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The Company
does not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease in the next 12 months

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense The Company did not

have any material amount accrued for interest and penalties for the year ended December 31 2008

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of the states of Tennessee and

Alabama The Company first filed income tax returns in Alabama in 2005 2006 and 2007 These returns are subject to

examination The registrant is no longer subject to examination by U.S federal and Tennessee taxing authorities for years before

2005
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NOTE 10- BENEFIT PLANS
Profit Sharing Plan The Bank has non-contributory trusteed profit sharing retirement plan covering all officers and employees

who have completed year
of service and are over the age of2l According to the plan the Banks contribution will not be less

than 10% or no more than 15% of net income before taxes with an overall limitation not to exceed 15% of the total salary of all

the participants The plan expense was $742463 $719844 and $703759 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Deferred Compensation Plan deferred compensation plan covers all directors Under the plan the Company pays each

participant or their beneficiary the amount of fees deferred plus interest over 15 years beginning with the individuals

retirement death or disability liability is accrued for the obligation under this plan The expense incurred for the deferred

compensation for each of the last three years was $262711 $266402 and $254395 resulting in deferred compensation liability

of $1503023 $1295118 and $1068118 respectively

Employee Stock Purchase Plan The 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the 1994 Employee Plan permits the granting of

rights to eligible employees of the Corporation to acquire stock total of 150000 shares were reserved under this plan The

Company has agreed to pay 3% of the interest rate cost up to maximum of $1 8000 per year
for all participants if the employee

chooses to purchase shares under the 1994 Employee Plan and borrows the funds to purchase the shares from the Company The

employee may also choose to purchase the shares with cash The Company has policy of issuing new shares to satisfy these

purchases The Board has established the following guidelines as to the number of shares employees are allowed to purchase on

July each year

Years of Service and

Number of Shares

Position Under 10 years
Over 10 years

Vice-Presidents and above 200 250

All other Officers 125 175

Non-Officers 75 125

The expense related to the 1994 Employee Plan was not material in 2008 2007 or 2006

NOTE 11 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The following table summarizes the components of other operating expenses for the years ended December

2008 2007 2006

Directors fees and
expense 423461 440002 432045

Stationery and supplies 223983 203679 208898

Insurance 306002 141563 123490

Collection and professional fees 453536 468256 211515

Postage 175074 161982 161627

Data processing expense 333003 300750 262406

Educational expense 195957 121608 146876

Telecommunication expense 185976 133996 126281

Other 1002342 895104 870698

3299334 2866940 2543836

NOTE 12- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Beginning balance 2102168

New loans 2100047

Effect of changes on composition of related parties

Repayments 2591173

Balance at end of
year 1611042

Deposits from principal officers directors and their affiliates at year-end 2008 and 2007 were $5568000 and $5565000
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NOTE 13- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Bank employees and in prior years non-employee directors may be granted options or rights to purchase shares of the

Corporations common stock under the Corporations stock option and employee stock purchase plans

The 2007 Equity Incentive Plan the 2007 Plan also permits the Board of Directors to grant restricted share awards to key

employees total of 100000 shares were reserved under the 2007 Plan of which the Company has awarded 12250 shares of

restricted stock to certain employees of the Company The forfeiture restrictions with respect to these awards lapse on the one

year anniversary of the date of grant Compensation expense associated with these restricted share awards is recognized over the

time period that the restrictions associated with the awards lapse

The 1997 Stock Option Plan the 1997 Plan permitted the Board of Directors to grant options to key employees total of

100000 shares were reserved under the plan of which 27500 were granted These options expire generally 10 years from the

date of grant The 1997 Plan expired in the second quarter of 2007

The 1994 Outside Directors Stock Option Plan the 1994 Directors Plan permitted the granting of stock options to non-

employee directors total of 50000 shares were reserved under this plan An option to purchase 500 shares was granted

annually upon becoming member of the Board of Directors of which 250 shares were immediately exercisable and the

remaining 250 shares were exercisable upon the first annual meeting of shareholders following the date of grant provided the

optionee was still serving as an outside director In addition each outside director upon first becoming board member received

an immediately exercisable option to purchase 2500 shares less the number of shares of stock previously beneficially owned
These options expired ten years

from the date of grant During 2003 the Board terminated this Plan At the time of termination

options to purchase 66160 shares under the plan had not been granted

summary of the stock option activity in the 2007 Plan the 1997 Plan and the 1994 Directors Plan for 2008 follows

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Number Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

of Options Price Term Value

Outstanding at January 2008 17252 39.67

Granted

Exercised 7527 32.66

Expired

Outstanding December 31 2008 9725 45.09 3.9 96400

Vested 9725 45.09 3.9 96400

Exercisable at December 31 2008 9725 45.09 3.9 96400

Information related to stock option activity in the 2007 Plan the 1997 Plan and the 1994 Directors Plan during each year follows

2008 2007 2006

Intrinsic value ofoptions exercised 168154 108040 73131

Cash received from option exercises 110256 156620 96019

Tax benefit realized from option exercises 12159 9358 6560

Weighted average fair value of options granted

As of December 31 2008 there were no nonvested stock options therefore there was no unrecognized compensation cost related

to nonvested stock options granted under the plans No compensation cost has been charged against income for these plans

related to stock options for 2008 2007 and 2006 The Company has policy to issue new shares to satisfy the exercise of share

options
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NOTE 13- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION CONTINUED
The 2007 Plan provides for the issuance of restricted shares to employees directors and contractors of the Company

Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period of the awards based on the fair value of the stock at issue date The

fair value of the stock was determined using the price of which the Company is aware at which the Companys Common Stock

was traded on date closest to the award date These restricted shares vest at the rate of twenty percent on each anniversary of

the grant date Compensation expense of$l25813 and $28760 has been charged against income for this plan in 2008 and 2007

respectively related to the grants of restricted shares Total shares issuable under the 2007 Plan are 87750 at year end 2008 and

4000 restricted shares were issued in 2008

summary of changes in the Companys nonvested shares for the year follows

Nonvested Shares Shares

Nonvested at January 2008 8250

Granted 4000

Vested 1650
Forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2008 10600

Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value

55.00

55.00

55.00

55.00

As of December 31 2008 there was $5 19177 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted shares

granted under the 2007 Plan The cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 3.9 years
The total fair

value of shares vested during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $90750 $0 and $0 respectively

NOTE 14- REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies

Capital adequacy guidelines and additionally for banks prompt corrective action regulations
involve quantitative measures of

assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices Capital amounts and

classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate regulatory

action Management believes as of December 31 2008 the Company and Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which

it is subject

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized although these terms are not used to represent overall financial

condition If adequately capitalized regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits If undercapitalized capital

distributions are limited as is asset growth and expansion and capital restoration plans are required At year-end 2008 and 2007

the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory
framework for prompt

corrective action There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the

institutions category
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NOTE 14- REGULATORY CAPITAL MATTERS CONTINUED
Actual and required capital amounts in thousands and ratios are presented below at year end

To Be Well Capitalized

Required Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action

Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Dollars in thousands

As of December31 2008

Total Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 55364 12.36% 35824 8.00% N/A

FNB 54490 12.17 35817 8.00 44771 10.00%

Tier Core Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 50067 11.18 17912 4.00 N/A

FNB 49193 10.99 17909 4.00 26863 6.00

Tier Core Capital to average quarterly assets

FPNC 50067 8.51 23532 4.00 N/A

FNB 49193 8.36 23528 4.00 29410 5.00

As of December 31 2007

Total Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 52759 13.96% 30226 8.00% N/A

FNB 51862 13.72 30222 8.00 37778 10.00%

Tier Core Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 49215 13.03 15113 4.00 N/A

FNB 48318 12.79 15111 4.00 22667 6.00

Tier Core Capital to average quarterly assets

FPNC 49215 9.49 20742 4.00 N/A

FNB 48318 9.32 20740 4.00 25925 5.00

Dividend Restrictions The Companys principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from the Bank

Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies Under these

regulations the amount of dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current years net profits combined

with the retained net profits of the preceding two years subject to the capital requirements described above During 2009 the

Bank could without prior approval declare dividends of approximately $1927000 plus any 2009 net profits retained to the date

of the dividend declaration

NOTE 15- LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES
Some financial instruments such as loan commitments credit lines letters of credit and overdraft protection are issued to meet

customer financing needs These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others as long as conditions

established in the contract are met and usually have expiration dates Commitments may expire without being used

Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments although material losses are not anticipated

The same credit policies are used to make such commitments as are used for loans including obtaining collateral at exercise of

the commitment

The contractual amounts of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at year end were as follows

2008 2007

Fixed Rate Variable Rate Fixed Rate Variable Rate

Commitments to make loans 1917200 523000 1090000

Unused Lines of credit 21794399 37055870 24675739 33243106

Standby letters of credit 3558784 1279516

Mortgage loans sold with repurchase

requirements outstanding 3234873 5775046

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less The fixed rate loan commitments have interest

rates ranging from 5.50% to 7.50% and maturities ranging from months to years

36



FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F1NANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 16- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of First Pulaski National Corporation follows

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

ASSETS 2008 2007

Cash 720326 764945

Investment in subsidiary at equity 50159129 48736315

Other assets 160991 143497

TOTAL ASSETS 51040446 49644757

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities

Accrued expenses 7578 11732

Total Liabilities 7578 11732

Shareholders Equity 51032868 49633025

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 51040446 49644757

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

INCOME

Dividends from subsidiary 2790128 4296234 3637790

Other income 200 75 25

2790328 4296309 3637815

EXPENSES

Other expense 261945 144330 76396

Income before income tax and undistributed

subsidiary income 2528383 4151979 3561419

Income tax benefits 92625 55235 29719

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 850146 1245476 1687599

NET INCOME 3471154 5452690 5278737
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NOTE 16- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 3471154 5452690 5278737

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 850146 1245476 1687599
Stock-based compensation expense 125813 28760

Increase decrease in other assets 17494 62320 10633

Increase decrease in other liabilities 4153 10192

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2725174 4183846 3580505

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash dividends paid 2790128 2796233 2637.790

Proceeds from exercise of stock options including tax benefit 122415 165978 102579

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 250470 125070

Common stock repurchased 352550 1428735 1270250
Cash Used by Financing Activities 2769793 3933920 3805461

INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH net 44619 249926 224956

CASH beginning of year 764945 515019 739975

CASH end of year 720326 764945 515019

NOTE 17- EARNINGS PER SHARE

The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow

2008 2007 2006

Basic

Net income 3471154 5452690 5278737

Weighted average common

shares outstanding 1547271 1552998 1572535

Basic earnings per common share 2.24 3.51 3.36

Diluted

Net income 3471154 5452690 5278737

Weighted average common

shares outstanding for basic

earnings per common share 1547271 1552998 1572535

Add Dilutive effects of assumed

exercises of stock options 4332 5921 5486

Average shares and dilutive

potential common shares 1551603 1558919 1578021

Diluted earnings per common share 2.24 3.50 3.35

All stock options were considered in computing diluted earnings per share since none were anti-dilutive
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NOTE 18- QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

Interest Net Interest Net Earnings Per Share

Income Income Income Basic Diluted

in thousands except per share amounts

2008

First quarter 8594 4314 1229 0.79 0.79

Second quarter 8256 4495 1076 0.70 0.70

Third quarter 8420 4987 309 0.20 0.20

Fourth quarter 8417 5034 857 0.55 0.55

2007

Firstquarter 7960 4088 1316 0.84 0.84

Second quarter 8313 4219 1368 0.88 0.88

Third quarter 8615 4256 1476 0.95 0.95

Fourth quarter 8717 4265 1293 0.84 0.83
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION
First Pulaski National Corporation is one-bank holding company with its only direct subsidiary being First National in Pulaski

First National or the Bank During the third quarter of 2001 First Nationals wholly-owned subsidiary First Pulaski

Reinsurance Company FPRC received its insurance license FPRC is engaged in the business of reinsuring credit insurance

written by the Corporations subsidiary

This review should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain of the statements in this discussion may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act as amended The words expect anticipate intend should
may could plan believe likely seek estimate and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-

looking statements but other statements not based on historical information may also be considered forward-looking All

forward-looking statements are subject to risks uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results performance or

achievements of the Corporation to differ materially from any results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements

Such factors include those identified in Item IA Risk Factors above and without limitation deterioration in the financial

condition of borrowers resulting in significant increases in loan losses and provisions for those losses ii continuation of the

historically low short-term interest rate environment iii increased competition with other financial institutions iv deterioration

or lack of sustained growth in the economy in the Corporations market areas vi rapid fluctuations in interest rates vi
significant downturns in the businesses of one or more large customers vii risks inherent in originating loans including

prepayment risks viii the fluctuations in collateral values the rate of loan charge-offs and the level of the provision for losses on

loans ix any activity in the capital markets that would cause the Corporation to conclude that there was impairment of any asset

including intangible assets and changes in state and Federal legislation regulations or policies applicable to banks and other

financial services providers including regulatory or legislative developments arising out of current unsettled conditions in the

economy and xi loss of key personnel Many of such factors are beyond the Corporations ability to control or predict and

readers are cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements In connection with the safe harbor

provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the Corporation cautions investors that future financial and

operating results may differ materially from those projected in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the

Corporation The Corporation disclaims any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements contained in this

discussion whether as result of new information future events or otherwise

OVERVIEW
Total assets of the Corporation grew $62.4 million or 11.8 percent from December 31 2007 to December 31 2008 Growth in

loans accounted for much of the growth in assets as loans grew $76.9 million or 23.9 percent from the end of 2007 to the end of

2008 Much of this growth in loans was generated in the registrants north Alabama market This growth in assets was funded

primarily by an increase in deposits primarily in the registrants north Alabama market as total deposits increased $61.5 million

or 13.1 percent from the end of 2007 to the end of 2008 Funding for the loan growth also came from maturities and sales of

investment securities as well as federal funds sold Net charged-off loans totaled $279800 in 2008 resulting in charge-off ratio

of 0.08 percent compared to net charge-offs of $267500 in 2007 resulting in charge-off ratio of 0.09 percent Net income

decreased approximately $1982000 to $3471000 or $2.24 per diluted share in 2008 as compared to 2007 Net interest income

increased approximately $2020000 in 2008 as compared to 2007 Net income in 2008 was negatively impacted by an

impairment charge taken against its investment in preferred stock securities of the Federal National Mortgage Association

Fannie Mae in 2008 discussed below by the Corporations expansion into new markets and the associated increase in

noninterest expense and by weakening economic conditions in the latter half of 2008

On September 2008 the United States Department of the Treasury the Federal Reserve and the Federal Housing Finance

Agency FHFA announced that the FHFA was placing Fannie Mae and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

Freddie Mac under conservatorship eliminating dividend payments on Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac common and preferred

stock and giving management control over Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to FHFA Subsequent to the announcement of the

actions described above the market value of the perpetual preferred securities of Fannie Mae owned by the Corporation declined

significantly Net income for 2008 was negatively impacted by non-cash impairment charge of $1952721 related to the write

down of the Corporations investment in Fannie Mae preferred stock securities with $108600 of the write-down occurring in the

fourth quarter of 2008 and the remainder of the write-down occurring in the second and third quarters of 2008 The Corporations

investment in Fannie Mae preferred stock is carried at $66400 at December 2008 If dividend payments are restored in the

future the fair value of these securities may improve The Corporation will continue to monitor these securities for other-than

temporary impairment in the future Additional impairment charges may be necessary in the future for these securities
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In January 2008 the Bank opened an office in Huntsville Alabama which is the first urban market in which the Bank has opened
an office and the first office located outside the state of Tennessee The Bank also opened an office in Athens Alabama in April

2008 The opening of these two offices had negative impact upon net income in 2008 as expenses associated with these offices

exceeded the income generated by these offices during the period Salaries and employee benefits
expense

increased

approximately $1121000 in 2008 as compared to the same period of 2007 primarily due to increased costs incurred to staff these

two new offices Other non-interest expenses
increased as well due to the opening of these two offices in north Alabama

Management believes this expansion into the north Alabama market is vital to the long-term continued growth and success of the

registrant The increased non-interest expenses experienced in 2008 due to this expansion into these new markets is likely to

continue in future years as compared to earlier periods as the Bank incurs increased personnel costs and other expenses
associated

with the two new offices

The weakening local and national economy especially in the latter half of 2008 negatively impacted the Corporations net

income in 2008 as the Corporations loan portfolio began to show signs of increased stress Actual charged-off loans showed

only small increase in 2008 as compared to 2007 however other indicators of stress such as nonaccrual loans and loans

classified as substandard or worse showed larger increases in 2008 as compared to 2007 Nonaccrual loans increased from

$428000 at the end of 2007 to $3029000 at the end of 2008 Loans rated substandard and accruing interest increased from

$8025000 at the end of 2007 to $11457000 at the end of 2008 Managements evaluation of the loan portfolio as of December

31 2008 indicated that additional provisions for loan losses were needed leading to provision for loan losses of $963000 in the

fourth quarter of 2008 and $2033000 for the entire year $758000 and $1771000 increase respectively over prior periods

The depth and length of the current economic downturn is unknown If economic conditions continue to deteriorate the provision

for loan losses is likely to continue at elevated levels in 2009 and the Corporations earnings will continue to be negatively

impacted

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICWS

The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform to accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States and with general practices within the banking industry In connection with the application of those

principles to the determination of our allowance for loan losses we have made judgments and estimates which have significantly

impacted our financial position and results of operations

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at level that is considered to be adequate to reflect estimated credit losses for

specifically identified loans as well as estimated probable credit losses inherent in the remainder of the loan portfolio at the

balance sheet date The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses which is charged against current period operating

results and decreased by the amount of charge-offs net of recoveries formal review of the allowance for loan losses is

prepared quarterly to assess the risk in the portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses Our

methodology of assessing the appropriateness of the allowance consists of several elements which include the historical

allowance and specific allowances as described below

The historical allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans For purposes of the quarterly review the loan

portfolio is separated by loan type and each type is treated as homogeneous pool Each loan is assigned risk rating by loan

officers using established credit policy guidelines These risk ratings are periodically reviewed and all risk ratings are subject to

review by an independent Credit Review Department Each risk rating is assigned an allocation percentage which when

multiplied by the dollar value of loans in that risk category results in the amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated to

these loans Allocation percentages are based on our historical loss experience and may be adjusted for significant factors that in

managements judgment affect the collectibility of the portfolio as of the evaluation date

Specific allowances are established in cases where management has determined loan is impaired loan is impaired when full

payment under the loan terms is not probable Every substandard or worse loan in excess of $250000 and all loans criticized as

Other Assets Especially Mentioned over $400000 are reviewed quarterly by the Executive and Loan Committee of the Banks

Board of Directors to review the level of loan losses required to be specifically allocated

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW
Net income for 2008 was approximately $3.47 million or $2.24 per

diluted share compared with approximately $5.45 million or

$3.50 per diluted share in 2007 and approximately $5.28 million or $3.35 per diluted share in 2006 Return on average assets

was 0.62% in 2008 1.08% in 2007 and 1.13% in 2006 The return on average equity was 6.9% 11.2% and 11.2% for 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively Net income for 2008 was negatively impacted by non-cash impairment charge of approximately

$1953000 related to the write-down of the Corporations investment in Fannie Mae preferred stock securities increased

noninterest expense associated with the Corporations expansion into Alabama and continuing deterioration in the local and

national economy
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NET INTEREST INCOME
Net interest income is the difference between interest and fees earned on loans securities and other interest-earning assets

interest income and interest paid on deposits repurchase agreements and borrowed funds interest expense In 2008 net

interest income increased by 11.9% to $18.83 million from $16.83 million in 2007 following an increase of 5.5% in 2007 from

$15.95 million in 2006 Total assets of the Corporation increased approximately $62.4 million from December 31 2007 to

December 31 2008 Loans net of unearned income increased approximately $76.9 million from December31 2007 to December

31 2008 Deposits increased approximately $61.5 million over the same period The higher loan growth than deposit growth

contributed to an approximately $17.2 million decrease in investments as the Corporation used investment security maturities and

sales to fund loan growth Also federal funds sold decreased approximately $4.4 million from December 31 2007 to December

31 2008 Total assets of the Corporation increased approximately $45.9 million from December 31 2006 to December 31 2007

Loans net of unearned income increased approximately $40.8 million from December 31 2006 to December 2007 Deposits

increased approximately $42.5 million over the same period contributing to an approximately $6.7 million increase in

investments as the Corporation invested the excess growth in deposits over loans in lower-yielding investment securities Also

federal funds sold decreased approximately $1.9 million from December 31 2006 to December 31 2007

Net interest income is function of the average balances of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the yields

earned and rates paid on those balances Management strives to maintain an acceptable spread between the yields earned on

interest-earning assets and rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities to maintain an adequate net interest margin

Net interest income on fully taxable equivalent basis increased $2175000 from 2007 to 2008 This increase resulted from

$2988000 increase due to increased volumes offset by $813000 decrease due to changes in interest rates The increase in

interest income in 2008 over 2007 was due to an increase in volumes of interest-earning assets that was largely offset by

decrease in the interest rates earned on interest-earning assets The decrease in interest expense in 2008 was primarily due to

decrease in rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities that was somewhat offset by an increase in the volumes of interest-bearing

liabilities Net interest income on fully taxable equivalent basis increased $900000 from 2006 to 2007 This increase resulted

from $1015000 increase due to increased volumes offset by $115000 decrease due to changes in interest rates The increase

in interest income in 2007 over 2006 was slightly more due to an increase in volumes of interest-earning assets than to an increase

in the interest rates earned on interest-earning assets The increase in interest expense in 2007 was slightly more due to an

increase in rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities than to an increase in the volumes of interest-bearing liabilities
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The following tables summarize the changes in interest earned and interest paid for the given time periods and indicate the factors

affecting these changes The first table presents by major categories of assets and liabilities the average balances the

components of the taxable equivalent net interest earnings/spread and the yield or rate for the years 2008 2007 and 2006

DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS

EQUITY INTEREST RATES AND INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Average Yield Average Yield Average Yield

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

in thousands of dollars

ASSETS

Interest-Earning Assets

Loans $357053 $27364 7.66% S300051 $26617 8.87% $277288 $23377 8.43%

Taxable investment securities 77504 3584 4.62% 83689 3937 4.70% 76337 2.879 3.77%

Non-taxable investment

securities 72368 3282 4.54% 75488 3203 4.24% 67001 2919 4.36%

Federal funds sold 9989 245 2.45% 8823 446 5.05% 8841 444 5.02%

Deposits in otherbanks 531 17 3.20% 408 17 4.17% 410 20 4.88%

Dividends 1756 88 5.01% 1729 106 6.13% 1680 91 5.42%

Total Interest-Earning Assets 519201 34580 6.66% 470188 34326 7.30% 431557 29730 6.89%

Non-Interest Earning Assets

Cash and due from banks 12054 9803 12050

Premises and equipment net 15425 11889 10677

OtherAssets 17135 15055 12792

Less allowance for loan losses 3913 3488 3731

Total Non-Interest-Earning Assets 40701 33259 31788

TOTAL $559902 $503447 $463345

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Demand deposits $52342 $698 1.33% $36708 $512 1.39% $33289 $370 1.11%

Savings deposits 68028 1102 1.62% 63334 1399 2.21% 69500 1418 2.04%

Time deposits 314163 12829 4.08% 286566 14596 5.09% 250203 11054 4.42%

Repurchase agreements 1567 40 2.55% 1658 65 3.92% 738 30 4.07%

Other borrowed money 3700 187 5.05% 3925 205 5.22% 3989 209 5.24%

Total
Interest-Bearing

Liabilities 439800 14856 3.38% 392191 16777 4.28% 357719 13081 3.66%

Non-Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Demand deposits 63892 58433 56553

Other liabilities 5747 4680 2026

Total Non-Interest Bearing

Liabilities 69639 63113 58579

Shareholders Equity 50463 48143 47047

TOTAL $559902 $503447 $463345

Net interest earningsspread

on taxable equivalent basis 19724 3.80% 17549 3.73% 16649 3.86%

Taxable equivalent adjustments

Loans 200 164 108

Investment securities 694 557 594

Total taxable equivalent adjustment 894 721 702

Net interest earnings $18830 $16828 $15947
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Note The taxable equivalent adjustment has been computed based on 34% federal income tax rate and has given effect to the

disallowance of interest expense for federal income tax purposes related to certain tax-free assets Loans include nonaccrual

loans for all years presented Interest on loans includes loan fees Loan fees included above amounted to $1265535 for 2008
$1203888 for 2007 and $1158644 for 2006

The following table shows the change from year to year for each component of the taxable equivalent net interest margin

separated into the amount generated by volume changes and the amount generated by changes in the yields earned or rates paid

2008 Compared to 2007 2007 Compared to 2006

Increase Decrease Due to Increase Decrease Due to

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

in thousands of dollars in thousands of dollars

Interest Earned on

Loans 5057 4310 747 1919 1321 3240

Taxable investment securities 291 62 353 277 781 1058

Non-taxable investment securities 132 211 79 370 86 284

Federal funds sold 59 260 201
Other deposits

Dividends 20 18 12 15

Total Interest-Earning Assets 4700 4446 254 2568 2028 4596

Interest Paid On

Demanddeposits $218 $32 $186 $38 $104 $142

Savings deposits 104 401 297 126 107 19
Time deposits 1406 3173 1767 1607 1935 3542

Repurchase agreements 21 25 37 35

Otherborrowedmoney 12 18

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 1712 3633 1921 1553 2143 3696

Net Interest Earnings on taxable

equivalent basis 2988 813 2175 1015 115 900

Less taxable equivalent adjustment 173 19

Net Interest Earnings 2002 881

The change in interest due to volume has been determined by applying the rate from the earlier year to the change in average

balances outstanding from one year to the next The change in interest due to rate has been determined by applying the change in

rate from one year to the next to the average balances outstanding in the later year The computation of the taxable equivalent

adjustment has given effect to the disallowance of interest expense for federal income tax purposes related to certain tax-free

assets

The net interest margin improved in 2008 to 3.80% from 3.73% in 2007 This increase in net interest margin was primarily due to

the growth in loans experienced in 2008 Aerage loans increased $57.0 million to $357.1 million in 2008 as compared to $300

million in 2007 while average investment securities decreased $9.3 million to $149.9 million in 2008 from $159.2 million in

2007 Loans are generally higher yielding assets than investment securities thus the higher growth in average loans in 2008 than

investment securities contributed to the increased net interest margin in 2008 as compared to 2007 Much of the growth in loans

in 2008 occurred in the Corporations Alabama markets

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Non-interest income totaled $4400000 in 2008 an increase of $261000 or 6.3% from 2007 The increase is primarily

attributable to S12 1000 increase in service charges on deposit accounts $56000 increase in other service charges and fees

$49000 increase in mortgage banking income and $36000 increase in income on company-owned life insurance in 2008 as

compared to 2007 These increases were partially offset by $26000 decrease in commissions and fees
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Non-interest income totaled $4139000 in 2007 an increase of $118000 or 2.9% from 2006 The increase was primarily

attributable to $116000 increase in other income $64000 increase in service charges on deposit accounts $55000 increase

in other service charges and $39000 increase in income on company-owned life insurance in 2007 as compared to 2006 These

increases were partially offset by $86000 decrease in gains losses on sale or write-downs of other assets net and $43000

decrease in mortgage banking income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Non-interest expense in 2008 was $17252000 up $3860000 or 28.8% from 2007 This increase is primarily attributable to

$1953000 write-down on investments in 2008 described in more detail above as well as $1121000 increase in salaries and

employee benefits in 2008 as compared to 2007 Other increases included $432000 increase in other operating expenses

$215000 increase in occupancy expenses an $88000 increase in advertising and public relations expenses and $51000

increase in furniture and equipment expense in 2008 as compared to 2007 The increase in salaries and employee benefits was

largely due to an increased number of employees due to the Corporations expansion efforts in North Alabama The

Corporations expansion efforts in North Alabama also negatively impacted other operating expenses occupancy expenses and

furniture and equipment expenses
in 2008 as compared to 2007

Non-interest expense in 2007 was $13392000 up $743000 or 5.9% from 2006 This increase was primarily attributable to

$391000 increase in salaries and employee benefits and $323000 increase in other operating expenses in 2007 as compared to

2006 The increase in salarics and employee benefits was largely due to increased personnel expenses per employee The

increase in other operating expense was primarily due to non-recurring increased expenses related to improving operating

processes related to document imaging as well as increased expenses
related to the registrants efforts to comply with Section

404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses is the charge to earnings which management feels is necessary to maintain the allowance for loan

losses at level considered adequate to absorb probable incurred losses on loans The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

is determined by continuous evaluation of the loan portfolio The Bank utilizes an independent loan review function which

considers past loan experience collateral value and possible effects of prevailing economic conditions Findings are presented

regularly to management where other factors such as actual loan loss experience relative to the size and characteristics of the loan

portfolio deterioration in concentrations of credit trends in portfolio volumes delinquencies and non-performing loans and when

applicable reports of the regulatory agencies are considered Management performs calculations for the minimum allowance

level needed and final evaluation is made

The provision for loan losses was $2033000 in 2008 compared to $261000 in 2007 and $175000 in 2006 The large provision

for loan losses in 2008 as compared to 2007 and 2006 was primarily result of deterioration in the economy of the

Corporations market areas in 2008 as well as increased loan growth that occurred in 2008 Although the Corporations net

charge-offs did not increase materially in 2008 when compared to 2007 the Corporation did experience significant increases in

non-accrual loans and loans classified as substandard or worse and accruing interest between 2007 and 2008 and as result

management determined that the allowance for loan losses should be increased through significant provision expense If the

borrowers on these nonaccrual or substandard or worse loans at December 2008 continue to experience difficulties and are

unable to repay the Corporation the Corporation may be required to charge these loans off which would require additional

provision expense that would negatively impact the Corporations results of operations For more detailed discussion of the

Corporations loan portfolio and loan quality see below under Financial Condition -- Loan Quality and Financial Condition

Non-Performing Assets

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense
includes federal and state taxes on taxable earnings Income taxes were $475000 $1861000 and

$1865000 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The effective tax rates were 12.0% 25.4% and 26.1% in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively The decline in the effective tax rate for 2008 was primarily result of reduced income before taxes in 2008 while

tax free income continues to proportionally increase

The Corporation had net deferred tax assets of $2412000 at December 31 2008 as compared to net deferred tax asset of

$1252000 at December 31 2007 The deferred tax asset resulting from the allowance for loan losses was the largest component

of the deferred tax asset in both periods At December 2008 the Corporation also had deferred tax asset of $749000

resulting from the write-down of investments discussed above

FINANCIAL CONDITION

LOANS

Managements focus is to promote loan growth in the Corporations target markets emphasizing the expansion of business in the

Corporations trade areas Efforts are taken to maintain diversified portfolio without significant concentration of risk Total

loans net of unearned fees increased $76.9 million from December 2007 to December 2008 Most categories of loans
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showed an increase in 2008 The categories of loans showing the largest increase included construction and land development
loans with an increase of $33.7 million nonresidential nonfarm real estate loans with an increase of $22.3 million residential real

estate loans with an increase of $13.8 million and commercial and industrial loans with an increase of $3.4 million in 2008

Over the last three years average total loans increased by $57.0 million or 19.0% in 2008 by $22.8 million or 8.2/o in 2007
and by $9.8 million or 3.7% in 2006 in each case over the prior year The growth in deposits together with liquidation of

available for sale securities in 2008 was the primary funding source for this continuing increase in loan demand

LOAN QUALITY
Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed

completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value Concentrations of credit risk or types
of collateral arising from financial instruments exist in relation to certain

groups of customers group concentration arises when
number of counterparties have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to

he similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions The Corporation does not have significant concentration to

any individual cListomer or counterparty The major concentrations of credit risk for the Corporation arise by collateral
type in

relation to loans and credit commitments The only significant concentration that exists is in loans secured by real estate

primarily commercial real estate loans 35 percent of the total loans and 1-4 family residential loans 23 percent of total loans
Commercial loans both those secured by real estate and those not secured by real estate are further classi fled by their appropriate
North American Industry Classification System NAICS code Of those loans classified by NAICS code the Corporation has

concentrations of credit defined as 25 percent or more of total risk-based capital of loans to lessors of residential buildings and

dwellings 55 percent of total risk-based capttal loans secured by subdivision land 53 percent of total risk-based capital loans

secured by hotel and motel properties 33 percent of total risk-based capital loans secured by new single family housing
construction 33 percent of total risk-based capital loans to gasoline stations with convenience stores 30% of total risk-based

capital loans to lessors of nonresidential buildings 27% of total risk-based capital and loans to religious organizations 25% of

risk-based capital The Corporation saw an increase of $33.7 million or 154.2 percent in its construction and land development
loans at year-end 2008 as compared to year-end 2007 primarily due to increases in loans secured by subdivision land reflecting

the Corporations expansion into more growth-oriented urban areas in Alabama Larger construction and land development lines

are reviewed annually and arc also included in sample testing by an independent loan review function Although the Corporation
has loan portfolio diversified by type of risk the ability of its customers to honor their contracts is to some extent dependent

upon economic conditions in the regions where our customers operate which experienced deterioration throughout 2008

geographic concentration arises because the Corporation grants commercial real estate and consumer loans primarily to

customers in Giles Marshall and Lincoln Counties Tennessee and Limestone and Madison Counties Alabama In order to

mitigate the impact of credit risk management strives to identify loans experiencing difficulty early enough to correct the

problems and to maintain an allowance for loan losses at level management believes is adequate to absorb probable incurred

losses in the loan portfolio

The amounts of loans outstanding at the indicated dates are shown in the following table according to type of loan

LOAN PORTFOLIO

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

iii thousands of dollars

Construction and land development 55484 21828 11682 9654 7211

Commercial and industrial 34120 30712 24289 26680 19814

Agricultural 7642 8260 5898 5804 7298

Real estate farmland 35923 33551 28145 23334 21845

Real estate residential 91757 77961 70655 75544 74913

Real estate nonresidential nonfarm 137749 115478 112650 104828 98862

Installment individuals 26668 24607 22965 22974 23228

Other loans 9672 9604 4847 4432 2935

399015 322001 281131 273250 256106

Includes student loans non-taxable loans overdrafts and all other loans not included in any of the designated categories
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The following table presents the maturity distribution ol selected loan categories at December 2008 excluding residential

mortgage home equity and installment-individual loans

Due after one

Due in one year year but before Due after five

Construction and land development

Commercial and industrial

Agricultural

Real estate-farmland

Real estate-nonresidential nonfarm

Total selected loans

or less five years years Total

us
housarrds srI dollars

37950 17534 55484

16900 16261 959 34120

6537 1105 7642

17003 17276 1644 35923

32474 92127 13148 137749

110864 144303 15751 270918

The table below summarizes the percentages of the loans selected for use in the preceding table falling into each of the indicated

maturity ranges
and the sensitivity of such loans to interest rate changes for those with maturities greater than one year all as of

December 2008

Due after one

Due in one year year but before Due after five

or less five years years Total

5.81% 100.00%

100.00%

Sensitivity of loans to changes in

interest rates-loans due after one year

Fixed rate loans

Variable rate loans

Percent of total selected loans 40.92% 53.27%

Cumulative percent of total 40.92% 94.19%

Total

120201 1998 122199

24102 13753 37855

144303 15751 160054
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Amount of net loans

outstanding at end of period

Daily average amount of loans

Balance of allowance for

possible loan losses at

beginning of period

Less charge-offs

Construction and land

development

Commercial and industrial

Agricultural

Real estate-farmland

Real estate-residential

Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm

Installment-Individuals

Other loans

Add recoveries

Construction and land

development

Commercial and Industrial

Agricultural

Real estate-farmland

Real estate-residential

Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm

Installment-Individuals

Other loans

Provision charged to expense

Adjustment for off-balance sheet

credit
exposures

Balance at end of period

97

120

173

For year ended December 31
2007 2006 2005

in thousands of dollars

5220 3467

Net charge-oils as percentage of

average loans outstanding

Net charge-offs as percentage of

Provision for loan losses

Allowance for loan losses

Allowance at end of period to

loans net of uneanied income 1.31%

0.09% 0.13% 0.13%

102.3% 205.7% 59.1% 94.0%

7.7% 10.4% 9.5% 17.9%

1.08% .24/ 1.37% 1.36%

As seen in the above table net loans charged-off increased slightly to $280000 in 2008 from $267000 in 2007 following

decrease from $360000 in 2006 Net charged-off loans remained relatively low in 2008 however the loan portfolio began to

show some weakness in quality as the decline in economic conditions accelerated late in 2008 Net loans charged-off in 2008

consisted of net losses on real estate loans of $161000 net losses on commercial and industrial loans of $74000 net losses on

loans to individuals of $58000 and net recoveries on agricultural loans of $11000 This compared to net loan charge-offi in

SUMMARY OF LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE

The following table summarizes loan balances at the end of each period and average loans outstanding changes in the allowance

for loan losses arising from loans charged off and recoveries on loans previously charged off and provisions for loan losses which

have been charged to expense

2008 2004

398564 321630 280816 272948 255824

357053 300051 277288 267459 238903

3467 3473 3735 3489 3449

56

85 29 315 15 155

10

19

255 26 226 50

24 393

233 364 455 372

475 517 739 752 997

15 88

15 21

12 22

58 22

33

290 186

397 373

624

2033 261 175 601 664

11

II

13

25

49

31

35

21

32 34

115

Net loans charged off

195

34

143 250

250 379

280 267 360 355

77
3473 3735 3489

13.8%

5.4%
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2007 which consisted of net losses on real estate loans of $189000 net losses on loans to individuals of $90000 net losses on

commercial and industrial loans of $16000 and net recoveries on agricultural loans of $25000 The allowance for loan losses at

the end of 2008 was $5220000 or 1.31% of outstanding loans and leases as compared to $3467000 or 1.08% of outstanding

loans and leases and $3473000 or 1.24% of outstanding loans and leases in 2007 and 2006 respectively Net loans charged-

off amounted to 0.08% of average total loans outstanding in 2008 0.09% in 2007 and 0.13% in 2006

The allowance for loan losses was 1.7 times the balance ofnonaccrual loans at the end of 2008 compared to 8.1 in 2007 and 4.4 in

2006 Nonaccrual loans increased $2601000 to $3029000 at December 31 2008 from $428000 at December 31 2007

primarily due to an increase in residential real estate loans and commercial real estate loans classified as nonaccrual Nonaccrual

loans decreased $364000 to $428000 at December 31 2007 from $792000 at December 2006 primarily due to decrease in

commercial real estate loans classified as nonaccrual Management believes that the allowance for loan losses as of December 31

2008 is adequate but if economic conditions deteriorate beyond managements expectations and additional charge-offs are

incurred the allowance for loan losses may require an increase through additional provision for loan losses

The following table sets out respectively the allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses and the percentage of loans by category

to total loans outstanding at the end of each of the years indicated

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

amounts in thousands of dollars

Allowance applicable to

Construction and land development 1009 168 90 376 177

Commercial and industrial loans 712 847 372 658 456

Agricultural loans 74 121 258 64 188

Real estate-farmland 367 310 240 267 203

Real estate-residential 844 565 856 833 804

Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm 1383 951 1124 1084 1080

Installment-individual 755 447 513 428 558

Other loans 76 58 20 25 23

5220 3467 3473 3735 3489

Percentages of loans by

category to total loans

Construction and land development 13.91% 6.78% 4.16% 3.53% 2.81%

Commercial and industrial loans 8.55% 9.54% 8.64% 9.77% 7.74%

Agricultural loans 1.92% 2.57% 2.10% 2.12% 2.85%

Real estate-farmland 9.00% 10.42% 10.0 1% 8.54% 8.53%

Real estate-residential 23.00% 24.21% 25.13% 27.65% 29.25%

Real estate-nonresidential

nonfarm 34.52% 35.86% 40.07% 38.36% 38.60%

Installment-individual 6.68% 7.64% 8.17% 8.41% 9.07%

Other loans 2.42% 2.98% 1.72% 1.62% 1.15%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

The Corporation monitors changes in the credit quality terms and loan concentrations in its loan portfolio Construction and

land development loans increased $33.7 million or 154.2% at year-end 2008 as compared to year-end 2007 primarily due to

increases in loans secured by subdivision land reflecting the Corporations expansion into more growth-oriented urban areas in

Alabama This increase in construction and land development loans in 2008 was the largest increase in any category of loans in

2008 The Corporation evaluates its exposure
level to loan concentrations periodically to determine any amount of additional

allowance allocations that is
necessary

based on these concentrations

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

Non-performing assets include nonacerual loans loans restructured because of debtors financial difficulties other real estate

owned and loans past due ninety days or more as to interest or principal payment

Nonaccrual loans are those loans for which management has discontinued accrual of interest because there exists significant

uncertainty as to the full and timely collection of either principal or interest or such loans have become contractually past due 90

days or more with respect to principal or interest unless such loans are well secured and in the
process

of collection

49



From December 2007 to December 2008 nonaccruing loans increased to $3029000 from $428000 following decrease

from $792000 at year-end 2006 The changes in each
year were primarily result of the items discussed previously under the

section titled Summary of Loan Loss Experience There were no restructured loans as of December 2008 and December

2007 Other real estate owned consisting of properties acquired through foreclosures or deeds in lieu thereof totaled $247000 at

December 31 2008 decrease from $672000 at December 31 2007 The weakening economic conditions will likely lead to an

increase in other real estate owned in 2009 as compared to 2008 and likely will result in increased non-interest expenses in 2009

as compared to 2008

There were $2000 in loans past due 90 days or more and accruing interest as of December 2008 At December 2007
there were no loans past due 90 days or more and accruing interest All major credit lines and troubled loans are reviewed

regularly by committee of the Board of Directors Management believes that the Banks non-performing loans have been

accounted for in the methodology for calculating the allowance for loan losses

The following table summarizes the Corporations nonaccrual loans loans past due 90 days or more but accruing interest and

restructured loans

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in thousands of dollars

Nonaccrual loans 3029 428 792 989 511

Troubled debt restructurings 61 59

Other real estate owned 247 672 664 1059 3198

Loans past due ninety days or

more as to interest or

principal payment 107 305

The amount of interest income actually recognized on the nonaccrual loans during 2008 2007 and 2006 was $35000 $18000

and $60000 respectively The additional amount of interest income that would have been recorded during 2008 2007 and 2006
if the above nonaccrual loans had been current in accordance with their original terms was $38000 $31000 and $55000

respectively

Loans that are classified as substandard by the Bank represent loans to which management has doubts about the borrowers

ability to comply with the present loan repayment terms At December 31 2008 there were approximately $11457000 in loans

that were classified as substandard and accruing interest This compares to approximately $8025000 in loans that were

classified as substandard and accruing interest at December 31 2007 At December 31 2008 management was not aware of

any specifically identified loans other than those included in the category discussed above that
represent significant potential

problems or that management has doubts as to the borrowers ability to comply with the present repayment terms The

Corporation believes that it and the Bank have appropriate internal controls and although the Corporation and the Bank conduct

regular and thorough loan reviews the risk inherent in the lending business results in periodic eharge-offs of loans The

Corporation maintains an allowance for loan losses that it believes to be adequate to absorb probable incurred losses in the loan

portfolio Management evaluates on quarterly basis the risk in the portfolio to determine an adequate allowance for loan

losses The evaluation includes analyses of historical performance the level of nonperforming and rated loans specific analyses

of problem loans loan activity since the previous quarter loan review reports consideration of current economic conditions and

other pertinent information The evaluation is reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank Also as

matter of policy internal classifications of loans are performed on routine and continuing basis See Critical Accounting

Policies for more information pertaining to the Corporations allowance for loan losses

SECURITIES

The securities portfolio consists primarily of U.S government agency securities U.S government-sponsored agency securities

marketable bonds of states counties and municipalities and corporate bonds Management uses investment securities to assist in

maintaining proper interest rate sensitivity in the balance sheet to provide securities to pledge as collateral for certain public

funds and repurchase agreements and to provide an alternative investment for available funds
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The following table sets forth the carrying amount of investment and other securities at the dates indicated

December 31

2008 2007 2006

in thousands of dollars

Available-for-sale

U.S Treasury securities 108

U.S Government Agencies and

Government-Sponsored Entities 58511 62690 67682

Mortgage-backed securities 12609 3939 1107

Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 64971 81779 71965

Other debt securities 387 3469 6437

Other securities 66 2023

Total securities 136652 153900 147191

The following table sets forth the maturities of securities at December 2008 and the average yields of such securities Actual

maturities may differ from contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages underlying the securities

may be called or prepaid with or without penalty Therefore these securities are not included in the maturity categories noted

below as of December 31 2008 Also the securities labeled Other securities in the table above are equity securities of

government-sponsored agency authorized to make loans and loan guarantees and have no maturity date Therefore they are not

included in the maturity categories below as of December 2008

U.S Treasuries

Government Agencies State and

and Government- Political Other Debt

Sponsored Enterprises Subdivisions Securities Total

in thousands of dollars

Available-for-sale

Due in one year or less

Amount $5603 $5701 $387 $11691

Yield 2.88% 4.52% 5.40% 3.76%

Due after one year through

five years

Amount $41612 $28793 $70405

Yield 4.09% 4.76% 4.36%

Due after five years through

ten years

Amount $11404 $28745 $40149

Yield 4.28% 5.20% 4.94%

Due after ten years

Amount $1732 $1732

Yield 5.48% 5.48%

The above table shows yields on the tax-exempt obligations to be computed on taxable equivalent basis

Total average securities decreased by $9.3 million or 5.8% to $149.9 million during 2008 as compared to $159.2 million for

2007 Average non-taxable securities decreased by $3.1 million or 4.1% while average taxable securities decreased by $6.2

million or 7.4% to account for the overall decrease in average investments The decrease in total average securities during 2008

was primarily result of higher average loan growth as compared to average deposit growth in 2008 Total average securities

increased by $15.9 million or 11.1% to $159.2 million during 2007 as compared to $143.3 million for 2006 Average non

taxable securities increased by $8.5 million or 12.7% while
average

taxable securities increased by $7.4 million or 9.6% to

account for the overall increase in average
investments The increase in total

average
securities during 2007 was primarily

result of higher deposit growth than loan growth in 2007
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During 2008 the Corporation saw an improvement in the market value of its investment securities portfolio There was an

unrealized gain on securities net of tax of $966000 at December 2008 as compared to an unrealized gain on securities net of

tax of $393000 at December 31 2007 The primary cause for unrealized gains and losses within the portfolio at each year-end

is the impact movements in market rates have had in comparison to the underlying yields on these securities Market interest

rates declined during the latter part of 2008 causing the investments held by the Corporation to increase in market value at

December 2008 as compared to December 2007

DEPOSITS

The Corporations primary source of funds is customer deposits including certificates ofdeposits in excess ofSlOO000 Average

deposits increased by $53.4 million or 11.9% to $498.4 million in 2008 by $35.5 million or 8.7% to $445.0 million in 2007
and by $20.4 million or 5.3% to $409.5 million in 2006 Although the Corporation experienced 9.3% growth in

average non-

interest bearing deposits in 2008 as compared to 2007 much of the dollar growth in deposits experienced by the Corporation in

2008 was in accounts that are interest sensitive Average time deposits increased $27.6 million in 2008 $36.4 million in 2007

and $25.2 million in 2006 as compared to the previous year

The average amount of deposits for the periods indicated is summarized in the following table

For the years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

in thousands of dollars except percents

Noninterest bearing

demand deposits 63892 0.00% 58433 0.00% 56553

Interest bearing

demand deposits 52342 1.33% 36708 1.39% 33289 1.11%

Savings deposits 68028 1.62% 63334 2.21% 69500 2.04%

Time deposits of

$l00000ormore 179185 4.10% 159941 5.12% 137747 4.51%

Othertirne deposits 134.978 4.06% 126625 5.06% 112456 4.30%

Total interest bearing

deposits 434533 3.37% 386608 4.27% 352992 3.64%

Total deposits 498425 445041 409545

Remaining maturities of time certificates of deposits of $100000 or more outstanding at Deceniber 31 2008 are summarized as

follows in thousands of dollars

months or less 39889

Over months through months 80178

Over months through 12 months 38794

Over year 25477

Total 184338

Other funds were invested in other earning assets such as federal funds at minimum levels necessary for operating needs and to

maintain adequate liquidity significant amount of the Corporations deposits are time deposits greater than $100000

significant percentage of these time deposits mature within one year If the Corporation is unable to retain these deposits at their

maturity it may be required to find alternate sources of funds to fund any future loan growth which may be more costly than these

deposits and inay as such negatively affect the Corporations net interest margin The Corporation does not currently expect that

material amount of these deposits will be withdrawn at maturity
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Neither the Corporation nor the Bank have historically incurred off-balance sheet obligations through the use of or investment in

off-balance sheet derivative financial instruments of structured finance or special purpose
entities organized as corporations

partnerships or limited liability companies or trusts However the Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet

risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers The following table summarizes the Banks

involvement in financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk as of December

Amount

2008 2007 2006

in thousands of dollars

Commitments to extend credit 60767 59532 53909

Standby letters of credit 3559 1280 1657

Mortgage loans sold with repurchase

requirements outstanding 3235 5775 7059

LIQUIDITY AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY MANAGEMENT
The primary functions of asset/liability management are to assure adequate liquidity and maintain an appropriate balance between

interest sensitive earning assets and interest bearing liabilities Liquidity management involves the ability to meet the cash flow

requirements of customers who may be either depositors wanting to withdraw funds or borrowers needing assurance that

sufficient funds will be available to meet their credit needs Interest rate sensitivity management seeks to avoid fluctuating net

interest margins and to enhance consistent growth of net interest income through periods of changing interest rates

Marketable securities particularly those of shorter maturities are the principal source of asset liquidity Securities maturing in

one year or less amounted to $11.7 million at December 31 2008 representing 8.6% of the investment securities portfolio

decrease from the 17.3% level of 2007 The amount of securities maturing in one year or less as of December 2008 returned

to historical levels seen prior to 2005 The higher amount of securities maturing in one year or less at December 31 2007 was

primarily result of the maturing of callable securities that were purchased during the 2002-2004 timeframe and that were not

called due to the rising rate environment that was prevalent at that time Management believes that the investment securities

portfolio along with additional sources of liquidity including federal funds sold and maturing loans provides the Corporation

with adequate liquidity to meet its funding needs

The Bank also has federal funds lines with some of its correspondent banks These lines may be drawn upon if the Bank has

short-term liquidity needs As of December 31 2008 the Bank had $25.0 million available under these lines At December 31

2008 the Bank had no federal funds purchased from these lines The average daily federal funds purchased for 2008 equaled

$193000 at an average interest rate of 2.70% For 2007 the
average daily federal funds purchased equaled $176000 at an average

interest rate of 5.30% For 2006 the average daily federal funds purchased equaled $12000 at an average interest rate of 4.73%

In addition to the federal funds lines the Bank also has the capacity to borrow additional funds from the Federal Home Loan

Bank of Cincinnati that may be drawn upon for short-term or longer-term liquidity needs At December 31 2008 the Bank had

total borrowings of $3392000 and had approximately $33192000 of available additional borrowing capacity from the Federal

Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati

On December 21 2004 the Board of Directors of the Corporation approved plan authorizing the management of the

Corporation beginning on December 31 2004 to repurchase up to $5000000 of the Corporations common stock from

shareholders desiring to liquidate their shares in either the open market or through privately negotiated transactions This plan

expired in 2008 as the Corporation repurchased shares equal to the maximum amount authorized for repurchase thereunder

On August 21 2007 the Board of Directors approved new plan authorizing the management of the Corporation to repurchase

up to an additional $5000000 of the Corporations common stock from shareholders desiring to liquidate their shares in either

the open market or through privately negotiated transactions This repurchase plan will take effect upon the purchase by the

Corporation of shares having total dollar amount equal to $5000000 in the aggregate under the Corporations repurchase

program which was approved by the Board of Directors on December 21 2004 with an effective date of December 31 2004

which occurred on April 10 2008 This new stock repurchase plan does not have an expiration date and unless terminated earlier

by resolution of the Corporations Board of Directors will expire when the Corporation has repurchased shares having value

equal to $5000000 The Corporations Board of Directors suspended this stock repurchase plan in the third quarter of 2008 As

of December 31 2008 $4738585 remained available for repurchase under this plan The Corporation has no other programs to

repurchase common stock at this time Management does not anticipate that these plans will reduce liquidity to unacceptable

levels
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Interest rate sensitivity varies with different types of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities Overnight federal

funds on which rates change daily and loans which are tied to the prime rate differ considerably from long term securities and

fixed rate loans Similarly time deposits especially those over $100000 are much more interest-sensitive than are savings

accounts At December 31 2008 the Corporation had total of $158.9 million in certificates of$l00000 or more which would

mature in one year or less In addition consumer certificates of deposits of smaller amounts mature generally in two years or less

while money market deposit accounts mature on demand

The Corporation has certain contractual obligations at December 2008 as summarized in the table below

Payments due by period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations year
1-3

years
3-5 years years

Total

Dollars in thousands

Certificates of deposit 282341 34461 5635 101 322538

Repurchase agreements 1724 1724

Borrowings 632 452 2200 108 3392

Standby letters of credit 3099 10 450 3559

Operating leases 99 206 107 412

Total 287895 35129 7942 659 331625

Commitments to extend credit 1917 1917

CAPITAL RESOURCES CAPITAL AND DIVIDENDS

Regulatory requirements place certain constraints on the Corporations capital In order to maintain appropriate ratios of equity to

total assets corresponding level of capital growth must be achieved Growth in total average assets was 11.2% in 2008 and

8.7% in 2007 Average equity increased 4.8% in 2008 and 2.3% in 2007 The Corporations equity capital was $51033000 at

December 31 2008 as compared to $49633000 at December 31 2007

The Corporations average equity-to-average asset ratio excluding unrealized gain/loss on investment securities was 9.0% in

2008 as compared to 9.6% for 2007 Management believes that the Corporations 2008 earnings were sufficient to keep pace

with its growth in total assets although the growth in the Corporations assets will likely slow in 2009 to help maintain strong

capital position The Corporation expects to maintain capital to asset ratio that reflects financial strength and conforms to

current regulatory guidelines The ratio of dividends to net income was 80.4% in 2008 51.3% in 2007 and 50.0% in 2006

As of December 31 2008 the authorized number of common shares was 10 million shares with 1551407 shares issued and

outstanding

Management is not aware of any
known trends events uncertainties or current recommendations by the regulatory authorities

that would have material adverse effect on the Corporations liquidity capital resources or operations
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The Federal Reserve the 0CC and the FDIC have issued risk-based capital guidelines for U.S banking organizations These

guidelines provide uniform capital framework that is sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banking companies Under

these guidelines total capital consists of Tier capital core capital primarily shareholders equity and Tier II capital

supplementary capital including certain qualifying debt instruments and the loan loss reserve Assets are assigned risk weights

ranging from 0% to 100% depending on the level of credit risk normally associated with such assets Off-balance sheet items

such as commitments to make loans are also included in assets through the use of conversion factors established by the

regulators and are assigned risk weights in the same manner as on-balance sheet items Banking institutions are expected to

achieve Tier capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of at least 4.00% total capital Tier plus Tier II to risk-weighted assets

ratio of at least 8.00% and Tier capital to total assets ratio leverage ratio of at least 4.00% As of December 31 2008 the

Corporation and the Bank had ratios exceeding the regulatory requirements to be classified as well capitalized the highest

regulatory capital rating The Corporations and the Banks ratios are illustrated below

To Be Well Capitalized

Required Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action

Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Dollars in thousands

As of December 31 2008

Total Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 55364 12.36% 35824 8.00% N/A

FNB 54490 12.17 35817 8.00 44771 10.00%

Tier Core Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 50067 11.18 17912 4.00 N/A

FNB 49193 10.99 17909 4.00 26863 6.00

Tier Core Capital to average quarterly assets

FPNC 50067 8.51 23532 4.00 N/A

FNB 49193 8.36 23528 4.00 29410 5.00

As of December 31 2007

Total Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 52759 13.96% 30226 8.00% N/A

FNB 51862 13.72 30222 8.00 37778 10.00%

Tier Core Capital to risk weighted assets

FPNC 49215 13.03 15113 4.00 N/A

FNB 48318 12.79 15111 4.00 22667 6.00

Tier Core Capital to average quarterly assets

FPNC 49215 9.49 20742 4.00 N/A

FNB 48318 9.32 20740 4.00 25925 5.00

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 This Statement defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about

fair value measurements This Statement establishes fair value hierarchy about the assumptions used to measure fair value and

clarifies assumptions about risk and the effect of restriction on the sale or use of an asset The standard was effective for fiscal

years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB issued Staff Position FSP 157-2 Et/ective Date of

FASB Statement No 157 This FSP delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities

except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on recurring basis at least annually to fiscal years beginning after

November 15 2008 and interim periods within those fiscal years
The impact of adoption was not material In October 2008 the

FASB issued FSP 157-3 Determining the Fair Value ofa Financial Asset when the Market tbr That Asset Is Not Active This

FSP clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in market that is not active The impact of adoption was not material

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option Jor Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities The

standard provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and establishes

presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different

measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities The new standard was effective for the Company on January

2008 The Company did not elect the fair value option for any financial assets or financial liabilities as of January 2008
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In September 2006 the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force finalized Issue No 06-4 ccounting ji.r Dc/erred Compensation and

Postretirement Benefit 4spects u/Endorsement Split-Dollar Li/C Insurance Arrangements This issue requires that liability be

recorded during the service period when split-dollar life insurance agreement continues after participants employment or

retirement The required accrued liability will be based on either the post-employment benefit cost for the continuing life

insurance or based on the future death benefit depending on the contractual terms of the underlying agreement This issue was

effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15 2007 The impact of adoption was not material

On November 2007 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 109 Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair

Value through Earnings SAB 109 Previously SAB 105 Application o/ Accounting Principles to Loan Connmitnenis stated

that in measuring the fair value of derivative loan commitment company should not incorporate the expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of the loan SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105 and indicates that the expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in measuring fair value for all written loan commitments

that are accounted for at fair value through earnings SAB 105 also indicated that internally-developed intangible assets should

not be recorded as part of the fair value of derivative loan commitment and SAB 109 retains that view SAB 109 was effective

for derivative loan commitments issued or modified in fiscal quarters beginning after December 15 2007 The impact of

adoption was not material

In December 2007 the SEC issued SAB No 110 which expresses the views of the SEC regarding the Lise of simplified

method as discussed in SAB No 107 in developing an estimate of expected term of plain vanilla share options in accordance

with SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment The SEC concluded that company could under certain circumstances continue

to use the simplified method for share option grants after December 31 2007 The Company does not usc the simplified method

for share options and therefore SAB No 110 has no impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

Effect of Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Standards In December2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141

revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 141R which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer

recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling

interest in an acquiree including the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in business combination SFAS No
141R is effective for fiscal

years beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is prohibited The adoption of this

standard is not expected to have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements an

amendment o/ARB No 51 SFAS 160 which will change the accounting and reporting for minority interests which will be

recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as component of equity within the consolidated balance sheets SFAS
160 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15 2008 Earlier adoption is prohibited

and the Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have significant impact on its results of operations or financial

position

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 16 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and hedging Activities an

amendment 0/ SFAS No 133 SFAS 161 SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS 133 for

derivative instruments and hedging activities SFAS 161 requires qualitative disclosure about objectives and strategies for using

derivative and hedging instruments quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of the instruments and gains and losses on

such instruments as well as disclosures about credit-risk features in derivative agreements SFAS 161 is effective for financial

statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged The

adoption of this standard is not expected to have material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Corporations primary place of exposure to market risk is interest rate volatility of its loan portfolio investment portfolio and

interest-bearing deposit liabilities Fluctuations in interest rates ultimately impact both the level of income and expense recorded

on large portion of the Corporations assets and liabilities and the market value of interest-earning assets and interest-hearing

liabilities other than those which
possess short term to maturity

Simulation modeling is used to evaluate both the level of interest rate sensitivity as well as potential balance sheet strategies

Important elements in this modeling process include the mix of floating rate versus fixed rate assets and liabilities the

repricing/maturing volumes and rates of the existing balance sheet and assumptions regarding future volumes maturity patterns

and pricing under varying interest rate scenarios As of December 2008 200 basis point rate shock is estimated to decrease

net interest income approximately $448000 or 2.4% as compared to rates remaining stable over the next 12 months This is

within the Banks Asset/Liability policy limit of-9.0% Also 200 basis point rate shock was forecasted to decrease the current

present value of the Banks equity by 2.8% well within the policy limits of-25.0% In addition -200 basis point rate shock is

estimated to decrease the current present value of the Banks equity by 3.2% and would decrease net interest income an estimated

$232000 or 1.2% over the next twelve months as compared to rates remaining stable both within policy guidelines Although

interest rates are currently very low the Corporation believes -200 basis point rate shock is an effective and realistic test since
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interest rates on many of the Corporations loans still have the ability to decline 200 basis points For those loans that have floors

above the -200 basis point rate shock the interest rate would be the floor rate All deposit account rates would likely fall to their

floors under the -200 basis point rate shock as well This simulation analysis assumes that NOW and savings accounts have

lower correlation to changes in market interest rates than do loans securities and time deposits The simulation analysis takes

into account the call features of certain securities based upon the rate shock as well as estimated prepayments on loans The

simulation analysis assumes no change in the Banks asset/liability composition due to the inherent uncertainties of specific

conditions and corresponding actions of management

More about market risk is included in Item 7-Managements Discussion and Analysis Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Management All market risk sensitive instruments described within that section have been entered into by the Corporation for

purposes other than trading The Corporation does not hold market risk sensitive instruments for trading purposes The

Corporation is not subject to any foreign currency exchange or commodity price risk

The following table provides information about the Corporations financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest

rates as of December 2008

Expected Maturity Date for year ending December 2008

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total Fair Value

in thousands of dollars

Interest-sensitive assets

Loans

Variable rate $52622 $13697 5260 $3162 6102 $34871 $115714 $111405

Average interest rate 5.07% 4.88% 4.74% 6.00% 5.25% 4.68% 4.95%

Fixed rate 97201 39284 72454 24826 44024 5061 282850 282501

Average interest rate 7.74% 7.97% 6.88% 7.44% 6.26% 6.12% 7.27%

Securities 45387 23182 10636 6366 8224 42790 136585 136585

Average interest rate 5.45% 4.66% 4.46% 5.32% 5.16% 5.18% 5.14%

Federal funds sold 11686 11686 11686

Average interest rate 0.21% 0.21%

Interest-sensitive liabilities

Interest-bearing deposits

Variable rate 139521 1056 140577 140577

Average interest rate 1.07% 3.93% 1.09%

Fixed rate 281205 26232 7173 3598 2036 320248 322587

Average interest rate 3.33% 4.52% 4.48% 5.16% 4.42% 5.50% 3.48%

Securities sold under

repurchase agreement 1724 1724 1724

Average interest rate 1.59% 1.59%

Long-termborrowings 613 234 219 1136 1079 III 3392 3659

Average interest rate 4.90% 5.69% 5.64% 5.05% 5.12% 5.69% 5.15%

U.S Government agency and U.S government-sponsored entity securities in the above table with call features are shown as

maturing on the call date if they are likely to be called in the current interest rate environment
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Trading Prices Dividends Paid

1st Quarter 2008 $52.50 55.00 $0.45

2nd Quarter 2008 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

3rd Quarter 2008 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

4th Quarter 2008 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

Total Annual Dividend 2008 $1 .80

1st Quarter 2007 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

2nd Quarter 2007 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

3rd Quarter 2007 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

4th Quarter 2007 $55.00 55.00 $0.45

Total Annual Dividend 2007 $1.80

There were approximately 1564 shareholders of record of the Corporations common stock as of February 28 2009

The Corporation reviews its dividend policy at least annually The amount of the dividend while in the Corporations sole

discretion depends in part upon the performance of First National The Corporations ability to pay dividends is restricted by

federal laws and regulations applicable to bank holding companies and by Tennessee laws relating to the payment of dividends by

Tennessee corporations Because substantially all operations are conducted through its subsidiaries the Corporations ability to

pay dividends also depends on the ability of the subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Corporation The ability of First National to

pay cash dividends to the Corporation is restricted by applicable regulations of the 0CC and the FDIC For more detailed

discussion of these limitations see Item Business Supervision and Regulation Payment of Dividends and Note 14 to the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Common stock of First Pulaski National Corporation is not traded through an organized exchange but is traded between local

individuals As such price quotations are not available on Nasdaq or any other quotation service The following trading prices

for 2008 and 2007 represent trades of which the Corporation was aware and do not necessarily include all trading transactions for

the period and may not necessarily reflect actual stock values
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The table below contains selected financial data for the Corporation for the last five years Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements which follows shows figures for basic earnings per share and gives effect to dilutive stock options in determining

diluted earnings per
share Total average equity and total average assets exclude unrealized gains or losses on investment

securities

For Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Interest income 33687 33605 29028 25395 23279

Interest expense
14856 16777 13081 9371 6589

Net interest income 18831 16828 15947 16024 16690

Loan loss provision 2033 261 175 601 664

Non-interest income 4400 4139 4021 3868 3428

Non-interest expense
17252 13392 12649 12261 12121

Income before income tax 3946 7314 7144 7030 7333

Net income 3471 5453 5279 5258 5328

Total assets 592303 529941 484088 450393 426929

Loans net of unearned income 398564 321630 280816 272948 255824

Securities 136652 153900 147191 133920 136464

Deposits 530497 469008 426475 397412 373401

Per Share Data

Net Income-Basic 2.24 3.51 3.36 3.29 3.24

Net Income-Diluted 2.24 3.50 3.35 3.28 3.22

Cashdividendspaid 1.80 1.80 1.68 1.65 1.65

Total average equity 50127 48629 47047 45685 45527

Total average assets 559115 504385 465446 442729 426067

Total year-end assets 592303 529941 484088 450393 426929

Total long-term debt 3392 3640 3874 4096 4335

Ratios

Avgequitytoavgassets 8.97% 9.64% 10.11% 10.32% 10.69%

Return on average equity 6.92% 11.21% 11.22% 11.51% 11.70%

Return on average assets 0.62% 1.08% 1.13% 1.19% 1.25%

Dividend payout ratio 80.40% 1.28% 49.97% 50.02% 50.99%

The basic earnings per share data and the diluted earnings per
share data in the above table are based on the following weighted

average number of shares outstanding

For Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Basic 1547271 1552998 1572535 1596695 1646422

Diluted 1551603 1558919 1578021 1603908 1655415
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COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Set forth below is graph comparing the annual change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Corporations Common
Stock against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Index and the Carson Medlin Company Independent Bank Index for

the period of five years beginning December 31 2003 and ending December 2008

The following Performance Graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by

reference the Proxy Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the extent that the

Corporation specifically incorporates this information by reference and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such acts

FIRST PULASKI NATIONAL CORPORATION

Five Year Performance Index
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